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Sunday Sth August 2012 : Arrival of french participants and transfer to

Subotica
Arrival of French participants in Budapest and transfer by bus to Subotica (Serbia), where they will
meet Balkans and Romanian participants.

Monday 6th, Tuesday 7th and Wednesday 8th Augut 2012: Subotica (Serbia)

Training of participants and preparation by teams of the itinerary seminar.

Subotica in few words:

Subotica (Serbian Cyrillic: Cyb6otuma [subotitsa] ( listen), is a city in northern Serbia, in the
Autonomous Province of Vojvodina. It is located at 46.07° North, 19.68° East, about 10 km from
the border with Hungary.

Formerly the largest city of Vojvodina region, contemporary Subotica is now the second largest city
in the province, following Novi Sad. It is also the fifth largest city in Serbia (discounting Kosovo)
after Belgrade, Novi Sad, Ni§, and Kragujevac. It is a multiethnic city, with Hungarians (34.99%)),
Serbs (27.85%), Bunjevci (10.87%) and Croats (10.43%) as largest ethnic groups. The city's
population numbers 96,483 inhabitants. Linguistically the city has a South Slavic-speaking majority
as Serbs, Croats, Bunjevci and Yugoslavs collectively compose 55.94% of the population. The
municipality of Subotica numbers 140,358 people. It is the administrative centre of the North Backa
District.

Language
The tree main languages speaking in Subotica are Serbian, Hungarian and Croatian.

Religions

Subotica is the centre of the Roman Catholic diocese of the Backa region belonging to Serbia. The
Subotica area has the highest concentration of Catholics in Serbia. Nearly 70% of the city's
population are Catholics.

Among another Christian communities, the members of the Serbian Orthodox Church are the most
numerous. The Jewish community of Subotica is the third largest in Serbia, after those in Belgrade
and Novi Sad. The astounding proportions and beauty of the Hungarian style art nouveau
synagogue are the legacy of a Jewish community that once numbered 6,000 members. About 1,000
of the original Jews of Subotica survived the Holocaust. Today, less than 200 people of Jewish
origin remain in Subotica.

Architecture

Unique in Serbia, Subotica has the most buildings built in the art nouveau style. The City Hall (built
in 1908-1910) and the Synagogue (1902) are of especially outstanding beauty. Another exceptional
example of art nouveau architecture is the actual Artistic Encounter building, which was built in
1904 by Ferenc J. Raichle.

The most remarkable church buildings are: the Catholic Cathedral of St. Theresa of Avila from
1797, the Franciscan Monastery from 1723, the Orthodox churches also from the 18th century, and
the Hungarian Art Nouveau Subotica Synagogue from the turn of the 19th to 20th century.

In recent years, there has been an effort to restore the synagogue. Over $400,000 has been raised for
the cause by 2004.

Departure to Osijek (Croatia) in the beginnig of evening on Wednesday 8th August (135 km,
2h30)



Thursday 9 aoiit 2012: Osijek (Bosnia Herzegovina)

Osijek in few words:

Osijek is the fourth largest city in Croatia with a population of 128,095 in 2011. It is the largest city
and the economic and cultural centre of the eastern Croatian region of Slavonia, as well as the
administrative centre of Osijek-Baranja county. Osijek is located on the right bank of the river
Drava, upstream of its confluence with the Danube.

Population

In 2011, they were 128,095 inhabitants in Osijek.

According to the census of 2001, total population of Osijek dropped to 114,616. Croats made up the
majority of Osijek's citizens, comprising 86.58 per cent of the city's population. Other ethnicities
include 8,767 (7.65%) Serbs, 1,154 (1.01%) Hungarians, 480 (0.42%) Albanians, 211 (0.18%)
Bosniaks, 175 (0.15%) Montenegrins, 178 (0.16%) ethnic Macedonians, 124 (0.11%) Roma, and
others including 24 Jews

Cultural events

Numerous events take place in the city throughout the year. The most important of them are the
Croatian Tambura Music Festival (in May), attended by tambura orchestras from all over Croatia
and the Osijek Summer Nights (during June, July and August), a series of cultural and
entertainment programs in the open, accompanied by excellent food and fairs. The Day of the City
of Osijek is celebrated with a cultural and artistic activities and exhibitions.

The surroundings of Osijek provide opportunities for hunting and angling on the Drava river and its
backwaters. Hunting in the area known as Kopacki Rit (in Baranja) is famous beyond the borders of
Croatia.

Departure to Tuzla in the end of the afternoon (around 200 km)

Friday 10 et Saturday 11 aoiit 2012 : Tuzla (Bosnia Herzegovina)

Tuzla in few words:

Tuzla is a city and municipality in Bosnia and Herzegovina. At the time of the 2011 census, it had
an estimated population of 120,000 inhabitants, while the municipality had 200,000. After Sarajevo,
and Banja Luka, Tuzla is the third largest city in Bosnia and Herzegovina, and the seat of the Tuzla
Canton and Tuzla Municipality. The name "Tuzla" is the Turkish word for salt mine, and refers to
the extensive salt deposits found underneath the city.

The city of Tuzla is home to Europe's only salt lake as part of its central park and also has around
100,000 people visiting its shores every year. The history of the town Tuzla goes back to 1510
when Tuzla was a Turkish garrison town.

Tuzla is the seat of the Tuzla Canton, which is a canton of the Federation of Bosnia and
Herzegovina, as well as of Tuzla Municipality, which is one of the 13 municipalities that together
constitute the Tuzla Canton. Administratively, Tuzla is divided into 39 mjesne zajednice (local
districts).

Cultural aspects:

One of the most influential writers in the Balkans, MeSa Selimovi¢ hails from Tuzla. In addition,
Tuzla hosts the annual Mesa Selimovi¢ book festival (in July), where an award for the best novel
written in the languages of Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, Serbia and Montenegro is presented.
The first professional theatre in Tuzla, Narodno Pozoriste u Tuzli, was founded by the brothers
Mihajlo and Zivko Crnogor&evié in 1944,

Departure to Sarajevo on Saturday 11th in the end of the afternoon (around 100km)



Sunday 12 and Monday 13 aoiit 2012: Sarajevo (Bosnia Herzegovina)

Sarajevo in few words:

Sarajevo is the capital and largest city of Bosnia and Herzegovina, with an estimated population of
over 311,161 people within its administrative limits. It is also the capital of the Federation of Bosnia
and Herzegovina entity, as well as the center of the Sarajevo Canton, which has a population of
438,757. Nestled within the greater Sarajevo valley of Bosnia, it is surrounded by the Dinaric Alps
and situated along the Miljacka River in the heart of Southeastern Europe and the Balkans.

Sarajevo is the leading social and cultural center of Bosnia and Herzegovina, and its region-wide
influence in politics, education, entertainment, media, fashion, science, and the arts contribute to its
status as Bosnia and Herzegovina's major economic center.

Sarajevo has been undergoing post-war reconstruction, and is the fastest growing city in Bosnia and
Herzegovina. The travel guide series, Lonely Planet, has named Sarajevo as the 43rd best city in the
world, and in December 2009 listed Sarajevo as one of the top ten cities to visit in 2010. In March
2012, Sarajevo won travel blog Foxnomad's "Best City to Visit" competition, beating out more than
one hundred cities around the entire world. In 2011, Sarajevo became the only city outside the
European Union to be nominated for the European Capital of Culture in 2014.

Historical elements

The city is historically famous for its traditional cultural and religious diversity, with adherents of
Islam, Orthodoxy, Catholicism and Judaism coexisting there for centuries. Due to this long and rich
history of religious and cultural variety, Sarajevo is often called the "Jerusalem of Europe" or
"Jerusalem of the Balkans". It was, until recently in the 20th century, the only major European city
to have a mosque, cathedral, Orthodox church and synagogue within the same neighborhood.

Although settlement in the area stretches back to prehistoric times, the modern city arose as an
Ottoman stronghold in the 15th century. Sarajevo has attracted international attention several times
throughout its history. In 1885, Sarajevo was the first city in Europe and the second city in the
world to have a full-time electric tram network running through the city, the first being San
Francisco. In 1914, it was the site of the assassination of the Archduke of Austria that sparked
World War 1. Seventy years later, it hosted the 1984 Winter Olympics. For nearly four years, from
1992-1996, the city suffered the longest siege of a city in the history of modern warfare during the
Bosnian War for independence.

Demographics

The last official census in Bosnia and Herzegovina took place 1991 and recorded 527,049 people
living in city of Sarajevo (ten municipalities). In the settlement of Sarajevo proper, there were
416,497 inhabitants. The war displaced hundreds of thousands of people, a large majority of whom
have not returned.

Today, Sarajevo's population is not known clearly and is based on estimates contributed by the
United Nations Statistics Division and the Federal Office of Statistics of the Federation of Bosnia
and Herzegovina, among other national and international non-profit organizations. As of June 2011,
the population of the city's four municipalities is estimated to be 311,161, whereas the Sarajevo
Canton population is estimated at 438,757.

The war changed the ethnic and religious profile of the city. It had long been a multicultural city,
and often went by the nickname of "Europe's Jerusalem". At the time of the 1991 census, 49.2% of
the city's population of 527,049 were Bosniaks, 29.8% Serbs, 10.7% Yugoslavs, 6.6% Croats and
3.6% other ethnicities (Jews, Romas, etc.). By 2002, 79.6 % of the canton's population of 401,118
were Bosniak, 11.2% Serb, 6.7% Croat and 2.5% others (Jews, Romas, etc.).



Communication and medias

As the capital and largest city of Bosnia and Herzegovina, Sarajevo is the main center of the
country's media. Most of the communications and media infrastructure was destroyed during the
war but reconstruction monitored by the Office of the High Representative has helped to modernize
the industry as a whole. For example, internet was first made available to the city in 1995.
Oslobodenje (Liberation), founded in 1943, is Sarajevo's longest running continuously circulating
newspaper and the only one to survive the war. However, this long running and trusted newspaper
has fallen behind Dnevni Avaz (Daily Voice), founded in 1995, and Jutarnje Novine (Morning
News) in circulation in Sarajevo. Other local periodicals include the Croatian newspaper Hrvatska
rije¢ and the Bosnian magazine Start, as well as weekly newspapers Slobodna Bosna (Free Bosnia)
and BH Dani (BH Days). Novi Plamen, a monthly magazine, is the most left-wing publication
currently.

The Radiotelevision of Bosnia-Herzegovina is Sarajevo's public television station, one of three in
Bosnia and Herzegovina. Other stations based in the city include NRTV “Studio 99”, NTV Hayat,
TV 1, Open Broadcast Network, TV Kantona Sarajevo and Televizija Alfa.

The headquarters of Al Jazeera Balkans are also located in Sarajevo, with a broadcasting studio at
the top of the BBI Center. The news channel covers Bosnia and Herzegovina, Serbia, Croatia and
Montenegro and the surrounding Balkan states.

Many small independent radio stations exist, including established stations such as Radio M, Radio
Stari Grad (Radio Old Town), Studentski eFM Radio, Radio 202, Radio BIR, and RSG. Radio Free
Europe, as well as several American and Western European stations are available.

Culture

Sarajevo has been home to many different religions for centuries, giving the city a range of diverse
cultures. In the time of Ottoman occupation of Bosnia, Muslims, Eastern Orthodox, Roman
Catholics, and Sephardi Jews all shared the city while maintaining distinctive identities. They were
joined during the brief occupation by Austria-Hungary by a smaller number of Germans,
Hungarians, Slovaks, Czechs and Ashkenazi Jews.

Historically, Sarajevo has been home to several famous Bosnian poets, scholars, philosophers, and
writers during the Ottoman Empire. To list only a very few; Nobel Prize-winner Vladimir Prelog is
from the city, as is Academy Award-winning director Danis Tanovi¢ and multiple award-winning
writer Aleksander Hemon. One of the region's most prolific and prominent poets, writers and
screenwriters, Abdulah Sidran is also a Sarajevo native. Nobel Prize-winner Ivo Andri¢ attended
high school in Sarajevo for two years. Sarajevo is also the home of the East West Theatre
Company, the only independent theater company in Bosnia and Herzegovina.

The Sarajevo National Theatre is the oldest professional theater in Bosnia and Herzegovina, having
been established in 1921.

Departure to Mostar on Monday 13th August in the end of the afternoon (around 100km)

Mardi 14 et mercredi 15 aoiit 2012 : Mostar (Bosnie Herzégovine)

Mostar in few words:

Mostar is a city and municipality in Bosnia and Herzegovina, the largest and one of the most
important cities in the Herzegovina region and the center of the Herzegovina-Neretva Canton of the
Federation. Mostar is situated on the Neretva river and is the fifth-largest city in the country. Mostar
was named after the bridge keepers (natively: mostari) who in the medieval times guarded the Stari
Most (Old Bridge) over Neretva river. The Old Bridge, built by the Ottomans in the 16th century, is
one of the city's most recognizable landmarks.
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History

Human settlements on the river Neretva, between the Hum Hill and the Velez Mountain, have
existed since prehistory, as witnessed by discoveries of fortified enceintes and cemeteries. Evidence
of Roman occupation was discovered beneath the present town.

As far as the medieval Mostar goes, although the Christian basilicas of late antiquity remained in
use, few historical sources were preserved and not much is known about this period. The name of
Mostar was first mentioned in a document dating from 1474, taking its name from the bridge-
keepers (mostari); this refers to the existence of a wooden bridge from the market on the left bank
of the river which was used by traders, soldiers, and other travelers. During this time it was also the
seat of a kadiluk (district with a regional judge). Since Mostar was on the trade route between the
Adriatic and the mineral-rich regions of central Bosnia, the settlement began to spread to the right
bank of the river.

In 1468 Mostar came under Ottoman rule and the urbanization of the settlement began. The town
was fortified between the years 1520 and 1566, and the wooden bridge was rebuilt in stone. The
stone bridge, the Old Bridge (Stari Most), was erected in 1566 on the orders of Suleiman the
Magnificent, the Ottoman ruler. Later becoming the city's symbol, the Old Bridge (Stari Most) is
one of the most important structures of the Ottoman era and was designed by Mimar Sinan, a
student of the famous Ottoman architect Mimar Sinan.In the late 16th century, Mostar was the chief
administrative city for the Ottoman Empire in the Herzegovina region.

The Austro-Hungarian Empire absorbed Mostar in 1878 and it ruled there until the aftermath of
World War I in 1918. Between 1992 and 1993, after Bosnia and Herzegovina declared
independence from Yugoslavia, the town was subject to an 18 month siege. In 9th November 1993,
the Old Bridge was destroyed by a Croatian shell. The Old Bridge was rebuilt in 2004 with a lot of
orginal stones and according to the Ottoman tradition.

Departure to Niksic on 15 August at the end of afternoon (around 120km)

Thursday 16 August 2012: Niksic (Montenegro)

Niksié¢ in few words:

In 2011 the Municipality of Niksic had a total population about 72,443 inhabitants (64,%
Montenegrin, 25% Serbian, 0,67% Roma, 0,58% Muslims, 4,8% don't want to declare and 3%
others) . Niksi¢ is located in Niksi¢ plain, at the foot of Mount Trebjesa. It is the center of the
municipality (Population of 75,282), which is the largest in Montenegro by area. NikSi¢ is the
second largest city in Montenegro, after Podgorica, and is an important industrial, cultural, and
educational center.

History

The first settlement in the area of modern-day Niksi¢ is thought to be formed in the 4th century, as a
Roman military camp. The camp was probably founded on the site of the previous Illyrian tribal
settlement. The camp and the settlement were known as Anagastum, which was later transliterated
as Onogost, which was the name of the city throughout the Middle Ages.

Ottoman Empire took hold of Niksi¢ in 1455, and it stayed under control of the Turks for more than
four hundred years, as a part of Herzegovina Province. During the later years of Ottoman
occupation, NikSi¢ served as a significant fortified military stronghold. It was liberated by
Montenegrins in 1877, under the command of Duke Maso Vrbica. After the liberation, the small
Ottoman hamlet began to transform into a modern urban settlement. The first urban plan was
adopted in 1883, commissioned by King Nicholas, and designed by Croatian architect Josip Slade.
Development of Niksi¢ is based on the guidelines of 1883 plan to this day. Simultaneously with
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urban development, cultural and economical expansion followed after inclusion of Niksi¢ into
Montenegro.

Although the city was not devastated in World Wars as much as Podgorica, all development and
growth were halted. After the city was liberated from German occupation in 1944, the most
dynamic growth of NikSi¢ followed. The city population was increased tenfold, and Niksi¢ became
the heart of Montenegrin industrial complex. During the SFRY era, the city flourished, as steel and
iron works, bauxite mines, electricity production, brewery and wood processing industries were set
up in and around the city.

However, as a mainly industrial city, Nik§i¢ was hit hard during the severe economic stagnation and
decline of the industries throughout Montenegro during the 1990s, with Yugoslav Wars raging in
the region. Some of the industries recovered during the 2000s (decade), and industry still makes up
for the most economic activity in the city.

Departure to Shkodra in the end of the afternoon (around 110km, 2h)

Friday 17 aouit 2012 : Shkodra/Shkodér (Albania)

Shkodra in few words:

Shkodér (Definite Albanian form: Shkodra; see the etymology section for other names), is a city in
northwestern Albania in the District of Shkodér, of which it is the capital. It is one of the oldest and
most historic places in Albania, as well as an important cultural and economic centre.

During many different epochs it has retained its status as a major city in the Western Balkans, due
to its geo-strategic positioning close to the Adriatic and the Italian ports, but also with land-routes to
other important cities and towns in neighbouring regions.

Its importance is heightened by the Lake of Shkoder to the east of the city - the largest in the
Western Balkans - that straddles Albania and neighbouring Montenegro. The population of Shkodér
is 95,907, while Shkodér County has a population of 217,375.

20th Century History

During the Balkan Wars, Shkodér went from one occupation to another, when the Ottomans were
defeated by the Kingdom of Montenegro. The Ottoman forces led by Hasan Riza Pasha and Esad
Pasha had resisted for seven months the surrounding of the town by Montenegrin forces and their
Serbian allies. Esad (Hasan had previously been mysteriously killed in an ambush inside the town)
finally surrendered to Montenegro in April 1913, after Montenegro suffered a high death toll with
more than 10,000 casualties. M. Edith Durham also notes the cruelties suffered at the hand of
Serbians in the wake of October 1913: "Thousands of refugees arriving from Djakovo and
neighbourhood. Victims of Montenegro. My position was indescribably painful, for I had no funds
left, and women came to me crying: 'If you will not feed my child, throw it in the river. I cannot see
it starve.".Montenegro was compelled to leave the city to the new country of Albania in May 1913,
in accordance with the London Conference of Ambassadors.

During World War I, Montenegrin forces again occupied Shkodér on June 27, 1915. In January
1916, Shkodér was taken over by Austria-Hungary and was the center of the zone of their
occupation. After World War I, the international military administration of Albania was temporarily
located in Shkodér, and in March, 1920, Shkodér was put under the administration of the national
government of Tirana. In the second half of 1920, Shkodér resisted another threat, the military
intervention of the forces of the Kingdom of Serbs, Croats and Slovenes. Shkodér was the center of
democratic movements of the years 1921-1924. The democratic opposition won the majority of
votes for the Constitutional Assembly, and on May 31, 1924, the democratic forces took over the
town and from Shkodér headed to Tirana. From 1924 to 1939, Shkodér had a slow industrial
development, small factories that produced food, textile, and cement were opened. From 43 of such
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in 1924, the number rose to 70 in 1938. In 1924, Shkodér had 20,000 inhabitants, the number grew
to 29,000 in 1938.

Shkodér was the seat of a Catholic archbishopric and had a number of religious schools. The first
laic school was opened here in 1913, and the State Gymnasium was opened in 1922. It was the
center of many cultural associations. In sports Shkodér was the first city in Albania to constitute a
sports association, the "Vllaznia" (brotherhood). Vllaznia is the oldest sport club in Albania.

During the early 1990s, Shkodér was once again a major center, this time of the democratic
movement that finally brought to an end the communist regime established by Enver Hoxha. In the
later 2000s, the city experiences a rebirth as main streets are being paved, buildings painted and
streets renamed. In December 2010, Shkoder and the surrounding region was hit by probably the
worst flooding in the last 100 years. In 2011, a new swing bridge over the Buna River was
inaugurated, thus replacing the mighty old nearby bridge.

Saturday 18. Sunday 19, and Monday 20 aoiit 2012 : Skopje (Macedonia)

Departure from Shkodra to Skopje in the morning on 18th August.

Skopje in few words:

Skopje is the capital and largest city of the Republic of Macedonia with about a third of the total
population. It is the country's political, cultural, economic, and academic centre. It was known in
the Roman period under the name Scupi. According to the last official count from 2002, Skopje has
a population of 506,926 inhabitants; according to two unofficial estimates for more recent period,
the city has a population of 668,518 or 491,000 inhabitants.

History

The territory of Skopje has been inhabited since at least 4000 BC; remains of Neolithic settlements
have been found within the old Kale Fortress that overlooks the modern city centre. On the eve of
the 1st century AD, the settlement was seized by the Romans and became a military camp.[2][3]
When the Roman Empire was divided into eastern and western halves in 395 AD, Scupi came under
Byzantine rule from Constantinople. During much of the early medieval period, the town was
contested between the Byzantines and the Bulgarian Empire, whose capital it was between 972 and
992. From 1282 the town was part of the Serbian realm and its capital city since 1346. In 1392 the
city was conquered by the Ottoman Turks who called the town Uskiip. The town stayed under
Ottoman control over 500 years, serving as the capital of pashasanjak of Uskiib and later the Vilayet
of Kosovo. At that time the city was famous for its oriental architecture. In 1912 the city was
conquered by the Kingdom of Serbia during the Balkan Wars and after the First World War the city
became part of the newly formed Kingdom of Serbs, Croats and Slovenes (Kingdom of
Yugoslavia). In the Second World War the city was conquered by the Bulgarian Army, which was
part of Axis powers. In 1944 it became the capital city of Democratic Macedonia (later Socialist
Republic of Macedonia), which was a federal state, part of Democratic Federal Yugoslavia (later
Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia). The city developed rapidly after World War II, but this
trend was interrupted in 1963 when it was hit by a disastrous earthquake. In 1991 it became the
capital city of independent Macedonia.

Population

The Macedonians are the largest ethnic group in the city with 338,358 people or 66.75% of the
population. They are followed by Albanians who are represent, with 103,891 inhabitants, 20.49% of
the total population. The Romani people with 23,475 inhabitants, or 4.63% of the total population,
are the third largest ethnic group.

The city also has a Serb minority population of 14,298 inhabitants (2.82% of the total population).
Turks compose 8,595 inhabitants or 1.70%, while there are 7,585 Bosniaks in the city forming
1.50% of the total population. Aromanians make up 0.50% of the total population with 2557

9



inhabitants. The remaining 1.61% corresponding to 8,167 people declared themselves to be of a
different ethnicity.

The largest minority, the Albanians, have a privileged status in comparison to other minority groups
due to their numbers. For example, the Albanian language can be used in local government and
primary schools, and is official in the municipalities where at least 25% of the population is
Albanian-speaking, in addition to the Macedonian official language.

The Roma minority first arrived in Skopje during the Ottoman Empire and settled heavily in the
"Topaana" district (the name of the district derives from the Turkish word Tophane, meaning
cannon foundry or armory), where they found work making gunpowder for the Turks.

Culture

Skopje is the cultural hub of the Republic of Macedonia and, therefore, is home to many of the
country's most important museums. One of these is the Museum of Contemporary Arts which is
devoted to the preserving of contemporary art. The museum was created as part of the
reconstruction following 1963 earthquake. The International Association of the Plastic arts called
upon the artists of the world to assist in creating a collection of works of art by which they would
support the vision of the city's reconstruction. The government of Poland held a national
competition for the design of the building of the Museum of Contemporary Art and donated it to
Skopje. The large park areas, which now contain many sculptures, surround the museum. The
Museum of Macedonia, the Natural History Museum, and the Archives of Macedonia are other
significant museums in Skopje.

The Skopje Jazz Festival has been held annually in October since 1981. It is part of the European
Jazz Network and the European Forum of World Wide Festivals.

The Skopje Cultural Summer Festival is a renowned cultural event that takes place in Skopje each
year during the summer. The festival is a member of the International Festivals and Events
Association (IFEA) and it includes musical concerts, operas, ballets, plays, art and photograph
exhibitions, movies, and multimedia projects that gather 2,000 participants from around the world
each year including St Petersburg Theatre, the Chamber Orchestra of the Bolshoi Theatre, Irina
Arkhipova, Viktor Tretiakov, The Theatre of Shadows, Michel Dalberto, David Burgess.

May Opera Evenings is a festival that has occurred annually in Skopje since 1972 and is dedicated
to promoting opera among the general public. Over the years, it has evolved into a stage on which
artists from some 50 countries have performed. Another opera festival, the Open Youth Theatre
Festival, was established in May 1976 by a group of young opera enthusiasts. More than 250
theatrical performances have been presented at this festival so far, most of them being alternative,
experimental theatre groups engaging young writers and actors. Recently, the festival became a
member of the Brussels Informal European Theatre Meeting (IETM). Within the framework of the
Open Youth Theatre, a Macedonian National Centre of the International Theatre Institute (ITI) was
established, and at the 25th ITI World Congress in Munich in 1993, it became a regular member of
the theatre association. The festival is now an international one representing groups from the former
Yugoslavia, the United States, France, the former Soviet Union, Spain, Japan, Poland, Italy, the
United Kingdom, India and other countries.

Departure to Subotica on Tuesday 21st in the morning (650 km, 8h30)

Tuesday 21, Wednesday 22, Thursday 23, and Friday 24 August 2012: Subotica
and progressive departure of participants

Departure of Romanian and Balkans participants ont 23 August.
Departure to Budapest of French participants on 24 early in the morning.
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Cities of French and Romanian participants

Saint-Denis

Saint-Denis is a commune in the northern suburbs of Paris, France. It is located 9.4 km (5.8 mi)
from the centre of Paris. Saint-Denis is a subprefecture (French: sous-préfecture) of the department
of Seine-Saint-Denis, being the seat of the arrondissement of Saint-Denis.

Saint-Denis is home to the royal necropolis of the Basilica of Saint Denis and was also the location
of the associated abbey. It is also home to France's national stadium, the Stade de France, built for
the 1998 FIFA World Cup.

Saint-Denis is a formerly industrial suburb currently reconverting its economic base. Inhabitants of
Saint-Denis are called Dionysiens.

The City is very cosmopolitain since she counted 37 741 immigrants in 2008 (36,4% of the
population). Most immigrants are coming from North Africa and Sahel Region.

Vichy

Vichy is a commune in the department of Allier in Auvergne in central France. It belongs to the
historic province of Bourbonnais.

It is known as a spa and resort town and was the de facto capital of Vichy France during the World
War Il Nazi German occupation from 1940 to 1944.

The town's inhabitants are called Vichyssois. Up until the 18th century they were more properly
known as les Vichois which stems from the Occitan name of the town, Vichei. The writer Valery
Larbaud uses the term Vicaldiens after the Ancient Roman name for the community.

With 80,194 inhabitants, Vichy's urban area is the second largest in the Auvergne region behind
Clermont-Ferrand.

The journalist Albert Londres is native of Vichy.

Caen

Caen is a commune in northwestern France. It is the prefecture of the Calvados department and the
capital of the Basse-Normandie region. It is located 15 km (9.3 mi) inland from the English
Channel.

Caen is known for its historical buildings built during the reign of William the Conqueror, who was
buried there, and for the Battle for Caen—heavy fighting that took place in and around Caen during
the Battle of Normandy in 1944, destroying much of the city.

Two hours north-west of Paris, and connected to the south of England by the Caen-(Ouistreham)-
Portsmouth ferry route, Caen is located in the centre of its northern region, over which it is a centre
of political, economic and cultural power.

As the city of William the Conqueror, the city has a long and complex history. In the Second World
War, it was a key site of the Battle of Normandy, and suffered considerable destruction. The city
has preserved the memory by erecting a memorial for peace.

Located a few miles from the coast, the landing beaches, the bustling resort of Deauville and
Cabourg, Norman Switzerland or Pays d'Auge (often considered the archetype of Normandy), Caen
offers all possible services.

The city proper has 113,249 inhabitants (as of 2006), while its urban area has 420,000, making
Caen the largest city in Lower Normandy. It is also the second largest municipality in all of
Normandy after Le Havre and the third largest city proper in Normandy, after Rouen and Le Havre.
The metropolitan area of Caen, in turn, is the second largest in Normandy after that of Rouen, the
21st largest in France.
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Cluj-Napoca

Cluj-Napoca commonly known as Cluj, is the second most populous city in Romania and the seat of
Cluj County in the northwestern part of the country. Geographically, it is roughly equidistant from
Bucharest (324 km / 201 mi), Budapest (351 km / 218 mi) and Belgrade (322 km / 200 mi). Located
in the Somesul Mic River valley, the city is considered the unofficial capital to the historical
province of Transylvania. Between 1790-1848 and 1861-1867, it was the official capital of the
Grand Principality of Transylvania.

As of 2011, 309,136 inhabitants live within the city limits, marking a decrease from the figure
recorded at the 2002 census. The Cluj-Napoca metropolitan area has a population of 392,562 people
while the population of the peri-urban area (Romanian: zona periurband) exceeds 400,000 residents.
The new metropolitan government of Cluj-Napoca became operational in December 2008. Lastly,
according to the 2007 data provided by the County Population Register Service, the total population
of the city is as high as 392,276 people. However, this number does not include the floating
population of students and other non-residents—an average of over 20,000 people each year during
2004-2007, according to the same source.

The city spreads out from St. Michael's Church in Unirii Square, built in the 14th century and
named after the Archangel Michael, the patron saint of Cluj-Napoca. The boundaries of the
municipality contain an area of 179.52 square kilometres (69.31 sq mi). An analysis undertaken by
the real estate agency Profesional Casa indicates that, because of infrastructure development,
communes such as Feleacu, Vilcele, Martinesti, Jucu and Baciu will eventually become
neighbourhoods of the city, thereby enlarging its area.

Cluj-Napoca experienced a decade of decline during the 1990s, its international reputation suffering
from the policies of its mayor of the time, Gheorghe Funar. Today, the city is one of the most
important academic, cultural, industrial and business centres in Romania. Among other institutions,
it hosts the country's largest university, Babes-Bolyai University, with its famous botanical garden;
nationally renowned cultural institutions; as well as the largest Romanian-owned commercial bank.
According to the American magazine InformationWeek, Cluj-Napoca is quickly becoming
Romania's technopolis.
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